
Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – January 13, 2025   Page 1 of 4 

 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE City Hall 
 300 W. Main Street 

 Grand Prairie, 

Texas 

Meeting Agenda  

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting  

Monday, January 13, 2025 5:30 PM City Hall - Briefing Room 

BRIEFING SESSION 

It is the intent of the Planning and Zoning Commission to be briefed by staff, and that all items on the 

agenda shall be available or open for discussion during the Briefing Session.  The Planning and  Zoning 

Commission may ask applicants and other interested parties for information or presentations.  All 

interested parties are invited to attend.  Briefings are taped. 

Call to Order 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Planning and Zoning Commission may conduct a closed session, if needed, in accordance with 

Texas Government Code Section 551.071 “Consultation with Attorney” to discuss legal matters 

pertaining to agenda items. Any final action will be taken during open session. 

Agenda Review 

6:30 PM Council Chambers 

REGULAR MEETING 

Call to Order 

Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Citizens may speak during Citizen Comments for up to five minutes on any item not the agenda by 

completing and submitting a speaker card. 

PUBLIC HEARING CONSENT AGENDA 

Items listed on the Public Hearing Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be approved 

by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of the Public Hearing Consent Agenda 

items unless requested.  If discussion is desired on an item, it will be considered separately.  The 

Commission may ask questions of those present on an item from the Public Hearing Consent Agenda. 

1. Approval of Minutes of the December 9, 2024, P&Z meeting  

1



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – January 13, 2025   Page 2 of 4 

2. PLT-24-11-0043 - Preliminary Plat - Lakesong Phase 2 (City Council District 6). Preliminary 

Plat of Lakesong Phase 2 to develop 2,210 residential lots, 55 open space lots, and one lot for 

an amenity center on approximately 820 acres. The property is located generally south of 

Seeton Road, East of FM 661, North of 287, and North of Kimble Road, Ellis County, Texas 

(Parcel IDs 303397/294666, 294715, 297164, 192962, 191456, 255261, 234939, and 204765) 

PUBLIC HEARING POSTPONEMENT, RECESS, CONTINUATIONS 

In accordance with Section 1.11.5.6 of the Unified Development Code (UDC) a public hearing for which 

notice has been given may be postponed by announcing the postponement at or after the time and place 

the hearing is scheduled to begin.  A public hearing may be recessed and continued any time after the 

hearing has commenced. Section 1.11.5.6.C of the UDC states if a postponement or continuance of a 

public hearing is to a specific date and time no later than 60 days from the first or most recent hearing, 

the announcement of the postponement of continuance at the public hearing in which the application has 

been postponed or continued by the Planning and Zoning Commission shall be sufficient notice and no 

additional notice is required. However, the Planning and Zoning Commission may direct staff to re-

notify postponed or continued applications for which public hearings have not yet commenced. 

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 

3. STP-24-11-0045 - Site Plan - Oncor Tyre Substation (City Council District 1). Site Plan for an 

Electric Substation on 9.98 acres. A portion of Tracts 1D & 2E, out of W.G. May Survey, 

Abstract No. 1028, Tarrant County, Texas, Zoned Light Industrial, and generally located east of 

Tapley St, and south of Tyre St, and tentatively addressed as 2350 W Marshall Dr 

4. STP-24-11-0043 - Site Plan - LivSmart by Hilton (City Council District 1). Site Plan for a five-

story Extended-Stay Hotel on 2.185 acres. Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Palace Parkway Hotel 

Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-217, within the Belt Line 

Corridor Overlay District, with approximate addresses of 340 & 360 E Palace Pkwy 

PUBLIC HEARING  

Members of the public may address the Commission on items listed on the agenda under Public Hearing 

Items.  Persons wishing to address the Commission must first complete a request to speak card.  A 

person may also use the request to speak card to indicate his or her support or opposition to a case 

without speaking.  Cards may be picked up at the desk by the entrance to the City Council Chambers 

and may be deposited at the desk or given to a staff member.  Speaking time is generally limited to five 

minutes per speaker.  Per the by-laws of the Planning and Zoning Commission, the applicant and those 

favoring the request shall have a maximum of 30 minutes, including rebuttal, to present their arguments 

for the request.  Those in opposition to a request shall have a maximum of 30 minutes to present their 

arguments against the request. When a large group is present, it is encouraged that representatives be 

appointed to speak for the group so that redundant testimony is minimized.  Commissioners may have 

questions of those speaking at the public hearing. The time used to answer the Commission's questions 

will not be deducted from the allotted 30 minutes.  These rules may be temporarily suspended, in whole 

or in part, by a unanimous vote of the Commission. 

5. SUP-24-09-0040 - Specific Use Permit Amendment - Inoperable Vehicle Holding Yard at 4226 

E Main (City Council District 5). SUP Amendment (SUP-618) to amend the boundary of an 

existing Inoperable Vehicle Holding Yard and Flea Market on 27.30 acres. A portion of Lot 1, 

2



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – January 13, 2025   Page 3 of 4 

Block 1, Dallas Auto Auction Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned 

Light Industrial (LI) and Heavy Industrial (HI), with an approximate address of 4226 E Main St 

6. SUP-24-04-0018 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - 2625 England Parkway (City Council 

District 6). Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for a two-story multi-tenant building with a drive 

through on 1.00 acres. Lot 33, Block D, Mira Lagos East Retail Addition, City of Grand 

Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-365, within the Lake Ridge Corridor Overlay District, 

and addressed as 2625 England Pkwy 

7. ZON-24-11-0029 - Zoning Change - 2335 & 2339 SE 4th (City Council District 3). Zoning 

Change from Single Family-Two (SF-2) to Single Family-Six (SF-6) on 0.438 acres. Lots 1A 

&1B, Block H, Grand Prairie Prize Acres Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, 

Texas, zoned Single Family-Two (SF-2) District, and addressed as 2335 & 2339 SE 4th St 

8. CPA-24-09-0013 - Comprehensive Plan Amendment - 509 Austin St (City Council District 5). 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change the Future Land Use Map from High Density 

Residential to Low Density Residential on 0.17 acres. A portion of Lot 3, Block B, Bairds 

Dallas Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Central Area District and 

Two Family Residential District, and addressed as 509 Austin St 

9. ZON-24-09-0024 - Zoning Change - 509 Austin St (City Council District 5). Zone Change 

from Central Area District and Two Family Residential District to Single Family-Six 

Residential District on 0.17 acres. A portion of Lot 3, Block B, Bairds Dallas Addition, City of 

Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Central Area District and Two Family Residential 

District, and addressed as 509 Austin St 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Hall is wheelchair accessible. If you plan to attend this public meeting and you have a 

disability that requires special arrangements, please call 972-237-8255 at least 24 hours in advance. 

Reasonable accommodations will be made to assist your needs. 

MESSAGE OF RELIGIOUS WELCOME 

As many of you are aware, we customarily begin our meetings with an invocation. This prayer is 

intended for the benefit of the board members and is directed to them and not the audience. Those who 

deliver the invocation may reference their own religious faith as you might refer to yours when offering 

a prayer. We wish to emphasize, however, that members of all religious faiths are welcome, not only in 

these meetings, but in our community as well. The participation of all our citizens in the process of self-

government will help our fine city best serve the good people who live here. Employees and audience 

members are welcome to pray or not pray, and this choice will have no bearing on any vote made by the 

board. 

 

Certification 
 

3



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – January 13, 2025   Page 4 of 4 

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A, the Planning 

and Zoning Commission agenda was prepared and posted January 8, 2025. 
 

 

Monica Espinoza, Planning Secretary 

 

4



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 01/13/2025 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner 

TITLE: Approval of Minutes of the December 9, 2024, P&Z meeting  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – December 09, 2024   Page 1 of 8 

 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE City Hall 
 300 W. Main Street 

 Grand Prairie, 

Texas 

Meeting Minutes  

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting  

Monday, December 09, 2024 5:30 PM City Hall - Briefing Room 

BRIEFING SESSION 

Chairperson Smith called the Briefing meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

Call to Order 

PRESENT 

Chairperson Cheryl Smith 

Vice- Chairperson John Fedorko (entered meeting at 5:39 p.m.) 

Commissioner Michelle Madden 

Commissioner Frank Gonzalez 

Commissioner Christopher Okoli 

Commissioner Tai Jones-Chapman (entered meeting at 5:48 p.m.) 

Commissioner Angela Luckey-Vaughn 

Commissioner Janie Mendez-Adhikari 

Commissioner Victor Medina 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

There was no closed session. 

Agenda Review 

Staff briefed commissioners on cases. Commissioner Madden asked if a signal light will be installed to 

direct traffic for item nine. Transportation Planner Brett Huntsman stated the options the developer will 

have but they will not know until after they have developed. Commissioner Fedorko asked will the 

spaces be leased to individuals or to fleets for item 9. June Sin referenced the operational plan provided 

by the applicant leaning more towards leasing it to one company and not allowing any overnight 

sleeping in trucks. 

6:30 PM Council Chambers 

REGULAR MEETING 

Chairperson Smith called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

Call to Order 

PRESENT 

Chairperson Cheryl Smith 

6

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – December 09, 2024   Page 2 of 8 

Vice- Chairperson John Fedorko 

Commissioner Michelle Madden 

Commissioner Frank Gonzalez 

Commissioner Christopher Okoli 

Commissioner Tai Jones-Chapman 

Commissioner Angela Luckey-Vaughn 

Commissioner Janie Mendez-Adhikari 

Commissioner Victor Medina 

 

Commissioner Fedorko led the Invocation. 

Commissioner Madden led the Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag and Texas Flag. 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

David Yaqubian 609 W Springdale Ln Grand Prairie Tx., he spoke about traffic continuing to get worse 

in the metroplex and the necessity of public transportation. 

PUBLIC HEARING CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion made by Commissioner Fedorko, Seconded by Commissioner Madden to close the public 

hearing and approve items one through six. The motion carried unanimously. 

1. Approval of Minutes of the November 11, 2024, P&Z meeting  

Approved on Consent Agenda 

2. PLT-24-10-0037 - Replat - Portillo's at Epic West (City Council District 2). Replat of Lot 9R-

1A, Block B, Epic West Towne Crossing Phase I, creating one commercial lot on 2.549 acres. 

Lots 9R-1 and 9R-2, Block B, Epic West Towne Crossing Phase 1, City of Grand Prairie, 

Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-364, within the SH 161 Corridor Overlay, and addressed as 

3104 & 3102 S Hwy 161 

Approved on Consent Agenda 

3. PLT-24-10-0041 - Final Plat - Jefferson Kirbybrook (Amavi) (City Council District 2). Final 

Plat creating nine lots for a hybrid housing (build to rent) development with 269 units, three 

HOA lots and one single family lot on 38.018 acres. Tracts 1, 2, and 3 of the J Gill Survey, 

Abstract No. 567, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned Planned Development 

(PD-433) with hybrid housing uses with an approximate address of 2401 Kirbybrook Blvd 

Approved on Consent Agenda 

4. PLT-23-07-0042 - Preliminary Plat - Lot 1, Block 1, Shady Grove Addition (City Council 

District 1). Preliminary Plat of Lot 1, Block 1, Shady Grove Addition, creating one commercial 

lot on 109.867 acres. Multiple tracts from the John C. Read Survey, Abstract No. 1183, 

Elizabeth Gray Survey, Abstract No. 1680, and John Hardin Survey, Abstract No. 540, City of 

Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, Zoned Light Industrial, within SH-161 Corridor Overlay, 

and generally located east of Bear Creek, north of W Shady Grove Rd, and south of W Rock 

7

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – December 09, 2024   Page 3 of 8 

Island Rd, with an approximate location between 400 W Shady Grove Rd and 200 W Rock 

Island Rd 

Approved on Consent Agenda 

5. PLT-24-10-0039 - Preliminary Plat - The Square at Belt Line (City Council District 2). 

Preliminary Plat of Lots 1, 2, and 3, Block 1, The Square Addition, creating three non-

residential lots on 14.330 acres. Being 14.33 acres out of the Stephen C. O'Gwinn Survey, 

Abstract No. 1103, J.W.E. Wallace Survey, Abstract No. 1517, and Benjamin F. Smith Survey, 

Abstract No. 1377, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, zoned PD-16A, within Belt Line 

Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 3940, 3948, 3950 and 3956 S. Belt Line Rd 

Approved on Consent Agenda 

6. PLT-24-09-0035 – Replat - Final Plat of GSW Industrial District (City Council District 1). 

Replat of Lot 1, Block 1, Great Southwest Industrial District Addition, creating one industrial 

lot on 1.089 acres. Site 39A & 43, GSID South, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, 

zoned Light Industrial, and located at 2406 W Pioneer Pkwy 

Approved on Consent Agenda 

 

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 

7. STP-24-07-0032 - Site Plan - Goodland Villages - Phase 1 (City Council District 6). Site Plan 

for a residential development with 54 Single Family Detached units and 122 Single Family 

Attached units on 34.86 Acres. Portions from two parcels (Parcel IDs 190600 & 284558) out of 

JOS Stewart Survey, Abstract No. 961, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, zoned PD-455, 

generally located south of Prairie Ridge Blvd and west of Old Fort Worth Rd 

 Senior Planner June Sin presented the case report and gave a power point presentation. She 

stated the applicant seeks Site Plan approval to construct 176 dwelling units consisting of 54 

detached units and 122 attached units in a paired home, or duplex, configuration. The 

proposed uses are permitted in the PD-455. The applicant is not requesting any variances. 

 The Development Review Committee recommends approval with the following conditions: 

1. The community main street and secondary street shall be provided per the Developer 

Agreement and be reviewed and approved by the Transportation and Mobility 

Services Department for the remaining phases.  

2. Tree mitigation plans be provided and approved by the Planning Division for the 

remaining phases.  

3. The proposed walking path and other amenities shall be constructed and available 

before the remaining phases are constructed. 

4. The required 25-foot landscape buffer along Old Fort Worth Street shall be provided 

on the private property outside of the newly dedicated Right-of-Way. 

8

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – December 09, 2024   Page 4 of 8 

Christian Songy 5818 Vickery Blvd Dallas Tx., noted support for this item and available for 

questions. 

Motion made by Commissioner Luckey-Vaughn, Seconded by Commissioner Gonzalez to close 

the public hearing and approve item seven per staff recommendations. The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING  

8. ZON-24-04-0011 - Zoning Change – Dalworth Rezone (City Council District 1). Zoning 

Change from Office district (O) to General Retail (GR) on 0.64 acres. Tract 1D, Ford P H 

Survey Abstract 543, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned Office (O) District, 

and addressed as 2406 Dalworth St 

 Senior Planner Abdul Ghous presented the case report and gave a power point presentation. 

He stated the purpose of the request is to rezone the property to allow for a hair salon use at 

this location. The property is currently zoned Office (O) district, which does not allow for a 

Grooming & Hygiene Salon use. The proposed GR zoning district does allow a Grooming & 

Hygiene Salon use. The applicant is not requesting any variances. The Development Review 

Committee (DRC) recommends approval. The proposed zoning is consistent with the FLUM. 

David Yaqubian 609 W Springdale Ln Grand Prairie Tx., he believes it would be more 

beneficial to change the zoning to mixed use. 

Motion made by Commissioner Fedorko, Seconded by Commissioner Chapman to close the 

public hearing and approve item eight. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

9. SUP-24-09-0039 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Heavy Truck Parking at 4226 E Main (City 

Council District 5). SUP/Site Plan for a Heavy Truck Parking Facility on 38.0 acres. A portion 

of Lot 1, Block 1, and Lot 1, Block 2, Dallas Auto Auction Addition, City of Grand Prairie, 

Dallas County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) and Heavy Industrial (HI), with an 

approximate address of 4226 E Main St 

 Senior Planner June Sin presented the case report and gave a power point presentation. She 

stated the applicant seeks to operate a heavy truck parking facility on 38.0 acres, which was 

formerly an inoperable vehicle holding yard. 

 The applicant is requesting the following variances: 

1. Landscaping – The applicant is requesting a variance to allow 25 feet of landscaping 

with no street trees.  

2. Gravel Surface – The applicant is requesting a variance to the required concrete 

pavement to allow gravel surface parking. 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) and staff recommends approval with the following 

conditions 

9

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – December 09, 2024   Page 5 of 8 

1. The new driveway entrance shall be constructed and accepted by Transportation and 

Mobility Services before the Certificate of Occupancy (CO) is issued. 

2. All areas where vehicles are parked should be paved with concrete per City Standards.  

3. The guard shack shall meet the secondary facade requirements of Appendix X.  

4. Landscaping shall be provided per Appendix X requirements.  

 

Commissioner Adhikari asked about any environmental concerns. Ms. Sin stated this is the 

reason for staff recommending the lot to be paved with concrete. Commissioner Chapman 

asked there is an option to request for the fence to be 8ft instead of 6ft. Ms. Sin stated yes, that 

could be an option during the motion. 

 

Daniel Glaser 261 5th Avenue Ste 1501 New York NY., stepped forward representing the case. 

He thanked planning staff for all the guidance during the DRC process. He stated all their 

properties around the country have a certain aesthetic and they are looking to attract national 

credit type tenants mostly trucking logistic companies with large fleets. Paisley Boney 127 

Essex Rd Chestnut Hill MA., stepped forward representing the case and gave a power point 

presentation. Commissioners discussed with staff the challenges the site would face with both 

the surface paved with concrete and gravel. Daniel Box 2728 N. Harwood Ste 500 Dallas TX., 

noted support of this request.  

Motion made by Commissioner Adhikari, Seconded by Commissioner Okoli to close the public 

hearing and approve item nine with conditions and parking areas must be on concrete unless 

otherwise approved by city council or engineering/environmental staff. The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

 

Senior Planner June Sin stated the following cases 10 and 11 would be presented together. 

10. ZON-24-09-0023 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - Cell Tower at 1355 E Seeton Rd (City 

Council District 6). Amendment to PD-318B to allow a Cell Tower within PD-318B with City 

Council approval of a Specific Use Permit and to adopt a Concept Plan depicting the Cell 

Tower location. Lot 1, Block 1, CRC Mira Lagos Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant 

County, Texas, zoned PD-318B, within Lake Ridge Corridor Overlay, with an approximate 

address of 1355 E Seeton Rd 

11. SUP-24-09-0036 - Specific Use Permit - Cell Tower at 1355 E Seeton Rd (City Council 

District 6). Specific Use Permit for a 160-foot Cell Tower on 14.212 acres. Lot 1, Block 1, 

CRC Mira Lagos Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-318B, 

within Lake Ridge Corridor Overlay, with an approximate address of 1355 E Seeton Rd 

 Senior Planner June Sin presented the case report for item 10 and gave a power point 

presentation. She stated the request is to amend PD-318B to allow a Cell Tower with the City 

Council's approval of a Specific Use Permit. The Development Review Committee (DRC) 

recommends approval. 

10

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – December 09, 2024   Page 6 of 8 

 Senior Planner June Sin presented the case report for item 11 and gave a power point 

presentation. She stated the applicant seeks a Specific Use Permit to construct a cell tower on 

the parking lot of an existing church. 

 The applicant is requesting the following variances: 

1. Distance from Residential Zoning – The applicant is requesting a variance to 480 feet 

distance from Single-Family District to allow 0 feet.  

2. Gravel Drive – The applicant is requesting a variance to the required concrete 

pavement to allow a gravel driveway. 

   

The Development Review Committee (DRC) and staff recommends approval with the following 

conditions: 

1. Any temporary storage of materials and fencing associated with the Seeton Road 

construction shall be removed once the construction is completed. 

 

Alan Scivally 4 Country Place Cir Arlington TX., stepped forward representing the case. He 

stated that temporary storage of materials will be removed by March 2025 before they start 

construction on the tower. Alec Broadus 4 Country Place Cir Arlington TX., noted support for 

this item and available for questions.  

Motion made by Commissioner Luckey-Vaughn, Seconded by Commissioner Chapman to close 

the public hearing and approve item ten. The motion carried unanimously. 

Motion made by Commissioner Luckey-Vaughn, Seconded by Commissioner Adhikari to close 

the public hearing and approve item eleven per staff recommendations. The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

12. SUP-24-10-0045 - Specific Use Permit - Flex-N-Gate Private Fuel Station (City Council 

District 4). Specific Use Permit for a Private Fuel Station at an existing industrial development. 

Lot 1R, Block D, Bardin Road Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas and Tarrant Counties, 

Texas, zoned PD-372, within the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District, and located at 2150 W 

Bardin Rd 

 Chief City Planner Savannah Ware presented the case report and gave a power point 

presentation. She stated the applicant is proposing to add a Private Fuel Station to an existing 

industrial development located at 2150 W Bardin Rd. The proposed use requires City Council 

approval of a Specific Use Permit. The purpose of the Specific Use Permit process is to identify 

those uses which might be appropriate within a zoning district, but due to either their location, 

functional or operational nature, could have a potentially negative impact upon surrounding 

properties; and provide for a procedure whereby such uses might be permitted by further 

restricting or conditioning them to eliminate such probable negative consequences. The 

Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval of this request. 

 Commissioner Madden asked are there any proximity requirements for gas stations located 

near residential area. Ms. Ware stated there are no proximity requirements in the UDC. 

11

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – December 09, 2024   Page 7 of 8 

 Don Cumming with Flex-N-Gate 2150 Bardin Rd Grand Prairie Tx., stepped forward 

representing the case. He stated the fuel station will have two levels of containment and the 

tank has a double wall with a fire guard protection, so it meets all state and local requirements 

in the tank. Cecle Doyle 2150 Bardin Rd Grand Prairie Tx., noted support of this request and 

available for questions. He noted to the best of his knowledge Flex-N-Gate has been placing 

these fuel stations for about 10 years with no explosions or major environmental spills. 

Matthew Workman 2803 Riverside Pkwy Grand Prairie TX., noted support of this request and 

available for questions. 

Motion made by Chairperson Smith, Seconded by Commissioner Adhikari to close the public 

hearing and approve item twelve. The motion carried 8-1 with Commissioner Madden in 

opposition. 

 

13. TAM-24-11-0010 - Text Amendment - Articles 1, 2, 6, 7, 12 and Appendix O. An Ordinance 

of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas amending the Table of Contents and various sections of 

Article 1, “General Provisions and Procedures,” Article 2, “Authority,” Article 6, “Density and 

Dimensional Requirements,” Article 7, “Special Districts,” Article 12, “Subdivision and 

Utilities,” and Appendix O, “Hospital District” of the Grand Prairie Unified Development Code 

for the purpose of delegating plat approvals (with exceptions) to the Director of the Planning 

and Development Department and/or designee; Providing the applicant the right to appeal said 

decision to the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council; Allowing the Director 

of the Planning and Development Department and/or designee to elect to present the plat 

approval to the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council; Amending Section 

12.17.3, “Lots,” of Article 12, “Subdivision and Utilities” of the Unified Development Code for 

the purpose of allowing the Director of the Planning and Development Department and/or 

designee to grant an exception to the requirement that all lots face a public street if a mutual 

access easement is established; Repealing all Ordinances or Parts of Ordinances in Conflict 

Herewith; Containing a Savings Clause and a Severability Clause; and Establishing the 

Effective as the Date of Passage and Approval 

 Chief City Planner Savannah Ware presented the case report and gave a power point 

presentation. She stated the purpose of this request is to amend articles of the Unified 

Development Code (UDC) to delegate authority to staff to approve, approve with conditions, or 

disapprove a plat so that, in most instances, plats can be processed administratively. 

Additionally, the proposed changes will allow staff to grant an exception to the requirement 

that all lots face a public street if a mutual access easement is established. 

State law gives City Council the authority to delegate the authority to approve, approve with 

conditions, or disapprove a plat to staff. The Development Review Committee (DRC) 

recommends approval. 

Motion made by Commissioner Fedorko, Seconded by Commissioner Medina to close the 

public hearing and approve item thirteen. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

12

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – December 09, 2024   Page 8 of 8 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Chairperson Smith moved to adjourn the meeting. The meeting adjourned at 7:47 p.m. 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Cheryl Smith, Chairperson 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Michelle Madden, Secretary 

13

Item1.



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 01/13/2025 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza 

PRESENTER: Abdul R. Ghous, AICP, Senior Planner 

TITLE: PLT-24-11-0043 - Preliminary Plat – Lakesong Phase 2. Preliminary 

Plat of Lakesong Phase 2 to develop 2,210 residential lots, 55 open 

space lots, and one lot for an amenity center on approximately 820 

acres. The property is located generally south of Seeton Road, East of 

FM 661, North of 287, and North of Kimble Road, Ellis County, Texas 

(Parcel IDs 303397/294666, 294715, 297164, 192962, 191456, 255261, 

234939, and 204765) 

APPLICANT: Michelle Lasa, Pape-Dawson 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

SUMMARY: 

Preliminary Plat of Lakesong Phase 2 to develop 2,210 residential lots, 55 open space lots, and one lot 

for an amenity center on approximately 820 acres. The property is located generally south of Seeton 

Road, East of FM 661, North of 287, and North of Kimble Road, Ellis County, Texas (Parcel IDs 

303397/294666, 294715, 297164, 192962, 191456, 255261, 234939, and 204765). 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

The purpose of the Preliminary Plat is to lay out roads, blocks, lots, and easements to facilitate the 

development of Lakesong. The Preliminary Plat serves as the basis for preparation of a Final Plat, 

which, upon approval by the City of Grand Prairie, will be recorded with the county. 

ADJACENT LAND USES: 

Table 1. Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North Unzoned (ETJ) Undeveloped 

South City of Midlothian Undeveloped, Single Family Residential 

West Unzoned (ETJ) Undeveloped 

14

Item2.



Page 2 of 3 

East Unzoned (ETJ) Undeveloped 

HISTORY: 

 August 1, 2023: City Council approved an ordinance amending TIRZ #3 to Extend the Term and 

Expand the Boundaries to Create and Include Area Development Zones #9, #10, and #11.  

 September 19, 2023: City Council approved Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a 

Development Agreement with HC GPM, LLC, HC Harmony Hill, LLC, and Riverside DPH, L.P 

for the Lakesong Planned Development. 

 September 19, 2023: City Council approved Resolution Consenting to the Creation of Lakesong 

Municipal Management District Number 1, an In-City Municipal Management District. 

 September 19, 2023: City Council approved Resolution Giving Consent to the Annexation of 

Land into the Lakesong Municipal Management District No. 1, an In-City Municipal 

Management District, with said Consent Being Effective Upon Annexation of the Land into the 

City of Grand Prairie 

 November 7, 2023: City Council approved a Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change the 

Future Land Use Map from Low Density Residential, Open Space, and 

Commercial/Retail/Office to Open Space, Mixed Use, High Density Residential, Medium 

Density Residential, and Low Density Residential on 1,201 acres (Case Number CPA-23-09-

0018).  

 February 6, 2024: City Council approved a zoning change from Agriculture to a Planned 

Development on 155 acres (Case Number ZON-23-11-0044). 

 February 12, 2024: Planning and Zoning Commission approved Preliminary Plat for Lakesong 

Phase 1 (Case Number PLT-23-11-0068).  

 November 11, 2024: Planning and Zoning Commission approved an amendment to the 

Preliminary Plat for Phase 1 (PLT-24-09-0036).  

 December 17, 2024: City Council approved annexation of 1,045 acres. 

 December 17, 2024: City Council approved a Planned Development District for mixed-use, 

urban residential, medium residential, estate residential, and open space uses on approximately 

1,200 acres (Case Number ZON-24-09-0026). 

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION: 

Preliminary plat of Lakesong Phase 2 to develop 2,210 residential lots, 55 open space lots, and one lot 

for an amenity center on approximately 820 acres. The Phase 2 plat comprises of Villages 4-13 and 15-

16. Below is a summary of the proposed villages: 

 Village 4 will consist of 175 lots  

 Village 5 will consist of 270 lots  

 Village 6 will consist of 165 lots  

 Village 7 will consist of 150 lots   

 Village 8 will consist of 361 lots   

 Village 9 will consist of 141 lots   

 Village 10 will consist of 114 lots   

 Village 11 will consist of 256 lots   

 Village 12 will consist of 189 lots   

 Village 13 will consist of 168 lots   

15

Item2.



Page 3 of 3 

 Village 15 will consist of 270 lots   

 Village 16 will consist of 7 lots 

ZONING REQUIREMENTS: 

The development is subject to the approved Developer Agreement and the Planned Development 

District. The tables below summarize the lot type for each village and composition of residential and 

non-residential lots for the development. 

Table 2. Summary of Lot Type for Phase 2  

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval. 

16

Item2.



Planning and Development

§̈¦287

§̈¦67

¬«342

¬«310

¬«10

¬«161¬«180

¬«352

¬«356

¬«183

¬«360

§̈¦67

§̈¦287

§̈¦175

§̈¦377

§̈¦77

§̈
¦

75

CASE LOCATION MAP
PLT-24-11-0043
LAKESONG PH 2

Location
Parcels

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!

City Limits
µ

Date: 1/8/2025

0 0.6
Miles

Exhibit A- Location Map
Page 1 of 1

Planning and Development
City of Grand Prairie

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

The City of Grand Prairie has prepared maps for departmental use. These are not official maps of the City of Grand Prairie and should not be used for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes but rather for reference. These 
maps are the property of the City of Grand Prairie and have been made available to public based on the Public Information Act. The City of Grand Prairie makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and 
accurate information possible. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use, or its interpretation. Utilization of this map indicates understanding and acceptance of this statement. 

17

Item2.



18

Item2.



19

Item2.



20

Item2.



21

Item2.



22

Item2.



23

Item2.



24

Item2.



25

Item2.



26

Item2.



27

Item2.



28

Item2.



29

Item2.



30

Item2.



31

Item2.



32

Item2.



33

Item2.



34

Item2.



35

Item2.



36

Item2.



37

Item2.



38

Item2.



39

Item2.



40

Item2.



41

Item2.



42

Item2.



43

Item2.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 01/13/2025 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: June Sin, Senior Planner  

TITLE: STP-24-11-0045 - Site Plan - Oncor Tyre Substation (City Council 

District 1). Site Plan for an Electric Substation on 9.98 acres. A portion 

of Tracts 1D & 2E, out of W.G. May Survey, Abstract No. 1028, 

Tarrant County, Texas, Zoned Light Industrial, and generally located 

east of Tapley St, and south of Tyre St, and tentatively addressed as 

2350 W Marshall Dr 

APPLICANT: Travis Yanker, Halff Associates 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

SUMMARY: 

Site Plan for an Electric Substation on 9.98 acres. A portion of Tracts 1D & 2E, out of W.G. May 

Survey, Abstract No. 1028, Tarrant County, Texas, Zoned Light Industrial, and generally located east of 

Tapley St, and south of Tyre St, and tentatively addressed as 2350 W Marshall Dr. 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

The applicant intends to construct a new electrical substation for Oncor on 9.98 acres. 

ADJACENT LAND USES: 

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties. 

Table 1. Zoning and Land Use 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North LI/Single Family (SF-4) Tyre Park/Industrial Warehouses 

South Light Industrial (LI) Industrial Warehouses  

East LI/Single Family (SF-4) Industrial (Poly America) 

West Light Industrial (LI) Industrial Warehouses/Undeveloped 

 

 

44

Item3.



Page 2 of 2 

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION: 

The applicant intends to construct a new electrical substation on 9.98 acres. The substation will feature 

electrical equipment such as transformers, breakers, switches, and control centers. There will be no 

occupiable structure on site. The proposed site does not face any public street, and access will be 

provided via Poly America’s property, located at 1465 S Great Southwest Parkway. 

ZONING REQUIREMENTS: 

Density and Dimensional Requirements 

The property is subject to density and dimensional requirements in Article 6 of the Unified Development 

Code (UDC). The following table summarizes these requirements. 

Table 2. Site Data Summary 

Standard Required (LI) Provided Compliance 

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 15,000 434,729 Yes 

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 409 Yes 

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 150 764 Yes 

Side adj. Residential (Ft.) 25 412 Yes 

Landscape and Screening 

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Article 8 of the UDC. The following 

table summarizes these requirements. The applicant requests a variance to allow no landscaping on site to 

avoid interferences with overhead powerlines. 

Table 3. Landscape Summary 

Standard Required Provided Meets 

Landscape Area (Sq. Ft.) 5% 21,734 0 Variance 

Street & Buffer Trees (1/500 Sq. Ft.) 43 0 Variance 

Shrubs (1 5-gallon shrub per 50 Sq. Ft.) 435 0 Variance 

Screening adj. to Residential  Masonry screening 
8-ft masonry 

screening wall 
Yes 

VARIANCES: 

The applicant is requesting variances 

1. Minimum Landscape Requirement – Variance to the minimum landscaping required to allow no 

landscaping. 

2. Pavement – Variance to the minimum paving requirements to allow gravel as a base material for 

the electrical equipment.  

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval. 

45

Item3.



Planning and Development

W Marshall Dr

We Roberts St

Tap
ley

 St
Dillard St

S G
rea

t S
ou

thw
est

 Pk
wy

Holland St

Ma
nn

ing
 St

Spikes St

Pan
gbu

rn 
StTus

keg
ee 

St

He
inz

 W
ay

Tyre St

Osler Dr

Preakness Dr

Furlong Dr
Par

kw
ay 

Dr

Mi
ssl

e D
r

Lan
ce 

Dr

Sherman St

Hospital Blvd

S M
 L K

ing
 Jr.

 Bl
vd

Loc
kh

eed
 M

art
in  

Bri d le Bit Dr

Timberlake Dr

David Daniels Dr

Medical Row  

¬«342

¬«310

¬«10

¬«161¬«180

¬«352

¬«356

¬«183

¬«360

§̈¦67

§̈¦287

§̈¦175

§̈¦377

§̈¦77

§̈
¦

75

CASE LOCATION MAP
STP-24-11-0044
2520 W BARDIN

Location
Street Center Line
Parcels

µ
Date: 11/13/2024

0 0.17
Miles

Exhibit A- Location Map
Page 1 of 1

Planning and Development
City of Grand Prairie

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

The City of Grand Prairie has prepared maps for departmental use. These are not official maps of the City of Grand Prairie and should not be used for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes but rather for reference. These 
maps are the property of the City of Grand Prairie and have been made available to public based on the Public Information Act. The City of Grand Prairie makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and 
accurate information possible. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use, or its interpretation. Utilization of this map indicates understanding and acceptance of this statement. 

Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 1 of 8

46

Item3.



Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 2 of 8

47

Item3.



Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 3 of 8

48

Item3.



Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 4 of 8

49

Item3.



Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 5 of 8

50

Item3.



Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 6 of 8

51

Item3.



Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 7 of 8

52

Item3.



Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 8 of 8

53

Item3.



Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 1 of 2

54

Item3.



Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 2 of 2

55

Item3.



Page 1 of 6 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 01/13/2025 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: June Sin, Senior Planner 

TITLE: STP-24-11-0043 - Site Plan - LivSmart by Hilton (City Council District 

1). Site Plan for a five-story extended stay hotel with 112 rooms on 

2.18 acres. Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Palace Parkway Hotel Addition, City 

of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-217, within the 

Beltline Corridor Overlay Districts, with approximate addresses of 340 

& 360 E Palace Pkwy 

APPLICANT: Debra Cox, JDJR Engineers & Consultants Inc 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve with Conditions 

  

SUMMARY: 

Site Plan for a five-story extended stay hotel with 112 rooms on 2.18 acres. Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Palace 

Parkway Hotel Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-217, within the Belt 

Line Corridor Overlay District, with approximate addresses of 340 & 360 E Palace Pkwy. 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

The applicant plans to construct an extended-stay hotel on 2.18 acres. LivSmart by Hilton is an Upper-

Midscale, 5-story hotel with 112 rooms. The site's zoning is a Planned Development (PD-217) with a 

base zoning of Mixed Uses, including entertainment, retail, and office uses. Hotels are allowed by right 

by the existing zoning.  

ADJACENT LAND USES: 

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties. 

Table 1. Zoning and Land Use 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North PD-217 Hotel (La Quinta, Super 8, Studio 6) 

South PD-217 IH 30 / Undeveloped 

West MF-1 Derby Park Apartment  

East PD-452 Commercial/Entertainment 

56

Item4.



Page 2 of 6 

HISTORY: 

 September 17, 1996: City Council approved a zoning change creating PD-217 for mixed uses 

including entertainment, retail, and office uses (Case Number CPA960901/Z960901). 

 October 27, 2007: The Planning and Zoning Commission approved a final plat for the property 

(Case Number P081004). 

HOTEL REQUIREMENTS: 

The Unified Development Code (UDC) classifies hotels as one of the following use types based on their 

chain scale rating, which is based on their average daily rate by STR, Inc. The hotel types are as follows: 

Luxury Hotel, Upscale/Upper-Upscale Hotel, Midscale/Upper-Midscale Hotel, and 

Economy/Independent Hotel. Any hotel not classified in the listing of chain scale ratings shall be 

classified as an Independent Hotel. 

Extended-stay residence Hotels are a subclassification of the hotel categories. They offer rental units for 

stays extending 30 consecutive days or more or consist of suites with a complete kitchen suitable for 

long-term occupancy. The LivSmart by Hilton provides rooms with fully-equipped kitchens, so it is 

considered an Extended-Stay Residence Hotel. The following table shows that the UDC limits the 

concentration of similar hotels within a one-mile radius. 

Table 2. Limits on Concentration of Hotels 

Hotel Classification Max. Number within 1 Mile 

Economy/Independent 3 

Midscale/Upper-Midscale 4 

Upscale/Upper-Upscale 5 

Luxury No Limitation 

Extended-Stay 2 or more than 250 rooms 

Attachment i – Hotel Classification within 1 Mile shows the location and classification of existing and 

proposed hotels within one mile of the subject property.  

One Upper-Midscale hotel and two Economy hotels are within one mile of the subject property. If this 

hotel is constructed, there will be two Midscale/Upper-Midscale hotels. There is one existing Extended-

Stay Hotels. If this hotel is constructed, the total number will be two. Therefore, if this hotel is 

constructed, the concentration requirement would be met. 

Table 3. Hotels within One Mile 

Name Class Location Distance Rooms Ext. Stay Year Built 

La Quinta Inn Upper-Midscale 380 E Palace 0 ft. (N) 85 No 2015 

Super 8 Motel Economy 402 E Palace 175 ft. (N) 58 No 1974 

Studio 6 Economy 406 E Palace 341 ft. (N) 99 Yes 1983 

Table 4. Scale Rating Concentration within One Mile 

Hotel Classification Limit within 1 Mile Existing Hotels Proposed Total 

Midscale/Upper-Midscale 4 1 1 2 

Economy 3 2 0 2 

57

Item4.



Page 3 of 6 

Extended-Stay 2 or 250 rooms 1 (99 rooms) 1 (112 rooms)  2 (211 rooms) 

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION: 

LivSmart by Hilton is an Upper-Midscale, 5-story hotel with 112 rooms. It is an extended-stay hotel 

with studio apartment-style rooms, a fitness center, and laundry facilities for long-stay guests. Each 

room features a full kitchen, including a stovetop, microwave, dishwasher, sink and full-sized fridge. 

Pots, pans, and cutlery are provided.  

ZONING REQUIREMENTS: 

Density and Dimensional Requirements 

The property is subject to density and dimensional requirements in PD-217 and Article 6 of the Unified 

Development Code (UDC). The following table summarizes these requirements. The proposal meets the 

density and dimensional requirements.  

Table 5. Density and Dimensional Summary 

Standard 
Required 

(PD-217) 
Provided Meets 

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 15,000 95,193 Yes 

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 150 342.75 Yes 

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 100 375.86 Yes 

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 73 Yes 

Rear Setback (Ft.) 25 87 Yes 

Side Yard Adj. Residential (Ft.) 20 Yes Yes 

Max. Height (Ft.) Unlimited* 67 Yes 

Setback required Adj. MF-1 

(50 Ft. max. height) 
34 88 Yes 

  * Unlimited, except must be setback 2 feet for each 1 foot in height from a lot in a residential zoning district. 

Parking Requirements 

The property is subject to parking requirements in Article 10 and Appendix F of the UDC. The following 

table summarizes these requirements. The proposal meets the parking requirements. 

Table 6. Parking Summary – Lot 1 (SpringHill Suites) 

Standard 
Required 

(Max.) 
Provided Compliance 

1 per unit plus 4 116 116 Yes 

Landscape and Screening 

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Article 8 and Appendix F of the UDC. 

The table below summarizes these requirements. The proposal meets or exceeds the landscape and 

screening requirements, except for two variances.  

Table 7. Landscape & Screening Requirements 

Standard Required Proposed Meets 

Landscape Buffer (Ft.) 30 10 to 16 Variance 

58

Item4.



Page 4 of 6 

Landscape Area 10 % (Sq. Ft.) 9,519 21,002 Exceed 

Front Yard 75% (Sq. Ft.) 7,139 14,309 Exceed 

Street & Buffer Trees (1/500 Sq. Ft.) 19 19* Yes 

Parking Island with Tree (1/10 spaces) 12 14 Yes 

Shrubs (1 5-gallon shrub per 50 Sq. Ft.) 190 190 Yes 

Flowering/Colorful Plantings 29 29 Yes 

Screening adj. Residential 
6-foot masonry 

fence 

Existing 6-foot 

wood fence w/ 

retaining wall 

Variance 

* Four trees are placed elsewhere on-site due to existing utility easements.  

 

Building Design 

The building consists of brick veneer, stucco, and stucco wall cladding panels. The applicant states that 

the proposed architecture is the prototype for LivSmart by Hilton. The proposed entry features a 

prominent porte-cochere supported by a partial wall. Storefront glazing is provided along the laundry, 

main entry vestibule, and fitness center. An enhanced landscaped area with a sculpture is proposed 

around the entrance. 

The property is subject to lodging facilities requirements in Section 16 of Article 4 of the Unified 

Development Code (UDC). Upper Midscale hotels are required to provide all Tier 1 amenities. The 

proposal generally meets the requirements except for the following variances: 

 
Table 8.1 Tier 1 Amenities  

Amenity Provided Meets 

A. Wi-Fi Connectivity in all guest 

rooms and common areas 
Yes Yes 

B. Daily in-suite trash and linen service Yes Yes 

C. Lobby/waiting area with min. area of 

2% of the overall building floor area 

Yes Yes 

D. Pool with a water surface area of at 

least 3,000 sq. ft. 

No Variance 

E. Fitness Center Yes Yes 

F. In-suite coffee and beverage 

facilities 

Yes Yes 

G. Service of at least one meal per day Yes Yes 

Total Elements 6 Variance 

1. Pool Surface: Tier 1 (d) requires a pool with a water surface of 3,000 sq. ft. for upper-midscale hotels. 

No pool is provided.  

 

Upper Midscale hotels are required to provide at least one Tier 2 amenity. Extended-stay hotels are required 

to provide (b) & (c) Tier 2 amenities. 

 

Table 8.2. Tier 2 Amenities  

Amenity Provided Meets 

A. Lobby/waiting area with a min. floor 

area of 3% 
No N/A 

59

Item4.



Page 5 of 6 

B. Outdoor park or landscaped common 

area at least 5% of overall building 

sq. ft. 

Yes Yes 

C. Service of at least one meal per day 

plus a snack bar or concessions area 

serving non-professed foods 

Yes Yes 

D. At least 10,000 sq. ft. of meeting 

space or other programmable space 

No N/A 

E. One or more electric vehicle 

charging stations 

No N/A 

F. Permeable pavement equivalent to 1 

permeable space per 10 required 

spaces 

No N/A 

Total Elements 2 Yes 

Appendix F Checklist 

Appendix F requires that applicants provide Menu Items from four categories: Usable Open and 

Pedestrian Walkways, Site Design and Building Orientation, Building Design, and Healthy, Smart, and 

Sustainable Community. The table below lists the Menu Items included in the proposal. The LivSmart 

by Hilton proposal includes 12.5 Menu Items. The proposal does not meet the requirement for Appendix 

F Menu Items. 

Table 9. Appendix F Menu Items  

 

Category Amenity 

Usable Open Space & Pedestrian Linkages Enhanced Usable Open Space 

Building Design Material Mix 

Building Design Color Contrast 

Building Design Specialty Accent 

Building Design Articulated Public Entrance 

Building Design Roof Profile Variation 

Building Design Canopy Variation 

Building Design Design Elements 

Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community 70% Native Plants 

Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community Wi-Fi (.5) 

Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community USB Charging Stations (.5) 

Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community Recycling Program (.5) 

Alternative Standard Foundation Planting 

Alternative Standard Bike Rack 

VARIANCES: 

The applicant is requesting the following variances: 

1. Landscape Buffer – The applicant is requesting a variance to reduce the 30-foot landscape buffer 

to a variable-width buffer, ranging from 10 feet to 16 feet.  

2. Screening Wall – The applicant is requesting a variance to the 6-foot masonry screening 

requirement along the western property line to allow no screening walls adjacent to the existing 

multi-family development. There is currently an existing retaining wall and wood fence. 

60

Item4.



Page 6 of 6 

3. Number of Tier 1 Amenities - The applicant is requesting a variance to allow no pool surface to 

be provided and allow 6 Tier 1 Amenities to be provided.  

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval with the following condition:  

1. The applicant shall provide a masonry screening wall per UDC standards along the western 

property line adjacent to the multi-family development. 

61

Item4.



Planning and Development

Ih 30 Svc Eb
W Ih 30 Eb  

Ih 30 Svc Wb
W Ih 30 Wb  

Gentry Pl E Palace Pkwy

W Tarrant Rd

Sta
diu

m 
Dr

Private  

Safari Cir

Veranda Ct

Lexington Cir
Hunts Point  

Bri d le P ath

¬«342

¬«310

¬«10

¬«161¬«180

¬«352

¬«356

¬«183

¬«360

§̈¦67

§̈¦287

§̈¦175

§̈¦377

§̈¦77

§̈
¦

75

CASE LOCATION MAP
STP-24-11-0043
340 & 360 E PALACE PKWY

Location
Street Center Line
Parcels

µ
Date: 12/12/2024

0 0.06
Miles

Exhibit A- Location Map
Page 1 of 1

Planning and Development
City of Grand Prairie

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

The City of Grand Prairie has prepared maps for departmental use. These are not official maps of the City of Grand Prairie and should not be used for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes but rather for reference. These 
maps are the property of the City of Grand Prairie and have been made available to public based on the Public Information Act. The City of Grand Prairie makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and 
accurate information possible. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use, or its interpretation. Utilization of this map indicates understanding and acceptance of this statement. 

Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 1 of 2

62

Item4.



LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

BEING all of Lot 1 and Lot 2, Block A, Palace Parkway Hotel Addition, an addition to the City of 
Grand Prairie, Texas, as recorded in Instrument 20090018246 of the Plat Records of Dallas 
County, Texas containing 2.18 acres or 95,193.48 square feet of land more or less. 

Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 2 of 2

63

Item4.



Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 1 of 1

64

Item4.



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 1 of 1

65

Item4.



Exhibit D -  Building Elevations 
Page 1 of 4

66

Item4.



Exhibit D -  Building Elevations 
Page 2 of 4

67

Item4.



EXTERIOR 

Exhibit D -  Building Elevations 
Page 3 of 4

68

Item4.



L I VSMART STUDIOS BY HILTON  |   PROCUREMENT GUIDE v 1 .0  |   MARCH 2024   |    17

GUEST STUDIOS  |   DESIGN GUIDANCE

Matcha: Studio Views
Exhibit D -  Building Elevations 

Page 4 of 4

69

Item4.



Article 4 Lodging Amenities Checklist 

  Tier 1 (Provide All)   
 

 (a) Wi-Fi connectivity in all guest rooms and common areas. 

 (b) Daily in suite trash and linen service for all guests. 

 (c) Lobby/waiting area with a minimum of 2% of the overall building floor area.  

 (d) An indoor or outdoor pool or outdoor pool with a water surface area of at least 3,000 square feet.  

 (e) A fitness center must be provided. Select below which applies to your project.  

 For hotels with up to 120 rooms, a fitness center measuring at least 500 square feet.  

 For hotels with more than 120 rooms, a fitness center measuring at least 800 square feet.  

 (f) In-suite coffee and beverage facilities.  

 (g) Service of at least one meal per day. 
   Tier 2 (See Table)   

 

 (a) Lobby/waiting area with a minimum floor area of 3% of the overall building area.  

 (b) Outdoor park or landscaped common area measuring at least 5% of the overall building square footage. The common area 
shall contain one or more activation features such as sports and games, barbecue grills, shaded lounge areas, playground, pet 
walk, or similar active or passive recreation features.  

 (c) Service of at least one meal per day plus a snack bar or concessions area serving non-processed foods.  

 (d) At least 10,000 square feet of meeting space or other programmable area.  

 (e) One or more electric vehicle charging stations.  

 (f) Permeable pavement equivalent to 1 permeable space per ten (10) required spaces. 
   Tier 3 (See Table)  

 (a) One or more full-service restaurants, as defined in Article 30, with direct access to the hotel lobby or shared interior corridor. Three 
meals must be served daily and room service must be made available to hotel guests.  

 (b) At least 20,000 square feet of meeting space or other programmable space.  

 (c) Retail space with a public storefront.  

 (d) Rooftop patio or common area with drink service. “Rooftop” is defined as a finished surface at least partially open to 
the sky above one or more habitable hotel floors.  

 (e) Corner rooms with windows providing for multiple viewing angles.  

 (f) Lobby with an indoor active water feature or substantial art feature, and an unobstructed ceiling height of at least 20 
feet.  

 (g) Valet parking or structured parking available to all guests.  

 (g) Height of six (6) or more stories.  
     

Use the table provided below to determine the number of amenities per tier required for your project. Hotel Class is determined by the most 
recent STR Chain Scale Ratings.  

Hotel Class Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 

Extended Stay All Amenities B & C 0 

Economy All 0 0 

Midscale All 1 0 

Upper-Midscale All 3 0 

Upscale All All 0 

Upper-Upscale All All Amenity H & 1 Additional Amenity 

Luxury All All Amenity H & 3 Additional Amenities  

 

x
x
x

x

x
x

x

x

(request variance)

Exhibit E - Amenity Plans 
Page 1 of 6

70

Item4.



Exhibit E - Amenity Plans 
Page 2 of 6

71

Item4.



DRAFT 3/5/24 L I VSMART STUDIOS BY HILTON  |   PROCUREMENT GUIDE v 1 .0  |   MARCH 2024   |    37

PUBLIC AREA  |   DESIGN GUIDANCE 

Outdoor Patio
The outdoor space provides a serene setting for Guests to gather around the 
grill or firepit, reminiscent of a cozy backyard atmosphere. Easily accessible pet 
areas cater to Guests traveling with their furry companions, ensuring everyone 
feels at home during their stay.

7

4
4

4

4

3
6

2

1

1

5

Roll-In Grills Dining Tables & Dining Chairs Partial Height Wall

Gas / Propane Fire Pit Lounge Chair with Side Table Pergola Above (optional)

Lounge Chairs at Fire Pit 

4 61

5 72

3

Exhibit E - Amenity Plans 
Page 3 of 6

72

Item4.



Exhibit E - Amenity Plans 
Page 3 of 6

73

Item4.



Exhibit E - Amenity Plans 
Page 5 of 6

74

Item4.



Exhibit E - Amenity Plans 
Page 6 of 6

75

Item4.



Appendix F Menu Items Checklist 

The Appendix F Menu Items Checklist intended to help developers organize their Development Request submittal and 
communicate Menu Items choices to Staff.  This checklist is not intended to be used without first reading Appendix F.  
Developers must select a total of 12 Menu Items.  Unless otherwise indicated, each Menu Item counts as 1 Menu Item. 

Instructions: Complete checklist by indicating which Menu Items you select. After completing the checklist fill out the 
Menu Item Summary Table. 

Usable Open Space & Pedestrian Linkages 
�� If Selected Menu Item Description 

� Enhanced Usable Open Space Usable Open Space that exceeds the minimum requirements with 
at least four Tier 1 amenities and three or more Tier 2 amenities. 

� Tier 1 Amenities: two types of seating, active water feature, 
furnished play area, dog park, sculpture, artwork, furnished 
outdoor game area, or comparable amenity proposed by the 
developer. 

� Seasonal plantings in decorative planters, textured paving, 
living wall, mural, decorative lighting, USB charging station, 
electrical hook-up to allow programming, or a comparable 
amenity proposed by the developer. 

� Circle or highlight the proposed amenities. 
� Above-and-Beyond Usable Open Space (2) Developers who are able to demonstrate to the Planning and 

Zoning Commission and City Council that the proposed Usable 
Open Space goes above-and-beyond the Enhanced Usable Open 
Space may count the space as two Menu Items. 

� Include project narrative or exhibit that lists the proposed 
amenities and describes why the space should be considered 
above-and-beyond Usable Open Space. 

� Public Art Piece Dedicate at least 1% of the total project cost to one major public 
art piece to be centrally located. 

� Public Art Series Dedicate at least 1% of the total project cost to multiple public art 
pieces to be located throughout the development. 

Site Design & Building Orientation (Select at Least Two Menu Items) 
�� If Selected Menu Item Description 

� 75% Parking Behind Buildings Buildings shall be placed towards the street with 75% of off-street 
parking located to the side or rear of buildings. 

� 100% Parking Behind Buildings (1.5) Buildings shall be placed towards the street with 100% of off-
street parking located to the side or rear of buildings. 

� Add Parking Lot Trees Provide one parking lot tree per five spaces.  Parking lot trees 
should be capable of achieving 30% canopy coverage over the 
parking area within 10 years of planting. 

� Rain Gardens Provide bioretention areas, or rain gardens, between every other 
row of parking. 

� Permeable Surface Use permeable concrete and pavers on 15% of the surface 
parking lot. 

� Strategic Parking Submit on of the following Strategic Parking Plans: 
� Parking Reclamation Plan – Create a parking reclamation plan 

that includes specific strategies to reclaim surplus parking 
spaces to expand structures and usable open spaces or create 
new ones.  Developers should anticipate changes in parking 
demand and design their site to create opportunities for 
adaptable reuse. 

� Parking Flex Plan – Create a parking flex plan that shows how 
parking spaces can be temporarily used for something other 
than parking, such as festivals, outdoor dining, community 
gatherings, and other events.  The plan should identify the 
parking spaces and describe how they will be used. 

x

x

x

x

Exhibit F - Appendix F Checklist
Page 1 of 4

76

Item4.



� Phased Parking Plan – Create a phased parking plan and 
construct parking spaces in phases as demand requires.  Areas 
intended for future parking phases would remain as green 
spaces until converted to parking spaces.  If, after five years, 
future parking spaces have not been constructed, they shall 
become permanent green space. 

� Circle or highlight selected parking plan. 
� Ceremonial Drive Developments over 20 acres or developments that include 

multiple lots/buildings shall provide a grand promenade or 
ceremonial drive with trees planted every 30 feet. 

� Gateway Developments over 20 acres or developments that include 
multiple lots/buildings shall use site layout and building 
placement to create a gateway, frame usable open space, or 
create a view corridor with appropriate terminus. 

� Park Once Environment (1.5) Developments over 10 acres or developments that include 
multiple lots/buildings shall use site layout and building 
placement to create a park once environment. 

� Shared parking agreements between different lots/occupants 
must be in place. 

Building Design (Select at Least Six Menu Items) 
�� If Selected Menu Item Description 

� Materials Mix A single material, color, or texture shall not exceed 60% of a 
single facade. 

� Stone Accent All four facades shall include a stone accent in a contrasting color 
and texture from the primary building material.  The combined 
area of the stone accent shall be at least 25% of the vertical 
surface area of all facades. 

� Color Contrast Each facade shall include at least two contrasting colors. 
� Specialty Accent Color and/or material shall be used to highlight entrances of 

multi-tenant buildings.  Specialty accents should reflect the 
personality or character of the occupant. 

� Corner Treatment Developers shall use at least three architectural elements to 
emphasize corners of the buildings: corner entrance, accent 
material, projecting cornice, tower element, enhanced windows, 
cupolas, gables, dormers, balconies, articulation, or a comparable 
element chosen by the developer.  Corner treatments must be 
one of the Menu Items for buildings at key intersections. 

� Circle or highlight the proposed architectural elements. 
� Articulated Public Entrance The primary building entrance shall be visibly prominent from a 

public street.  At least three of the following shall be used: 
recessed facade, projecting facade, raised canopy, taller door 
dimensions, double doors, lighting fixtures on either side of the 
entry, steps or stoops, changes in materials, arches, columns, 
eave treatment, transom windows, or a comparable element 
chosen by the developer. 

� Circle or highlight the proposed elements. 
� Buildings at Key Intersections Developers should highlight key intersections by using additional 

design elements to create gateways or landmarks.  Buildings at 
key intersections shall include at least three of the following 
features: corner plaza with plantings and seating, corner tower 
form, cupolas, large window openings, sloped or pitched roof 
form, richer colors, seasonal plantings, or a comparable element 
chosen by the developer. 

� Circle or highlight the proposed features. 
� Roof Profile Variation Developers shall use parapets or another technique to create a 

distinctive roof profile. 
� Articulation Elements Each facade shall include at least three of the following items 

every 60 feet: change in roofline, facade modulation, window 

x

x

x

x

x

Exhibit F - Appendix F Checklist
Page 2 of 4

77

Item4.



fenestration patterns, vertical columns, and change in material or 
texture. 

� Circle or highlight the proposed items. 
� Enhanced Windows All facades with windows shall include at least two types of 

windows that differ in the style, size, shape, or placement. 
� Canopy Variation Facades shall include multiple types of canopies.  Changes in 

shape, color, or material should be used to highlight an 
architectural feature or particular user while complementing the 
established design theme. 

� It is likely that individual tenants will determine the final design 
of the canopy.  If tenants are unknown at this time, submit an 
exhibit that illustrates variations in shape, color, and material 
within the intended design theme. 

� Design Elements Facades shall include at least three other design elements: 
trellises, towers, overhang eves, banding, pilasters, projecting 
cornices, columns, string courses, rustication, lintels, or a 
comparable element proposed by the developer. 

� Circle or highlight the proposed design elements. 
Healthy, Smart, and Sustainable Community (Select at Least Two Menu Items) 
�� If Selected Menu Item Description 

� Mature Trees Provide mature trees for 30% of required trees.  The locations of 
the mature trees should be focused in usable open spaces and 
along pedestrian paths. 

� Connect to Parks and/or Trails Provide a connection to existing or proposed parks and/or trails.  
The connection should function as a continuation, not just a point 
of access.  The connection shall include appropriate amenities 
such as bike racks, pet waste disposal stations, water fountains, 
misting stations, or a comparable amenity proposed by the 
developer. 

� Circle or highlight the proposed amenities. 
� Community Garden Provide a community garden and participate in the City’s 

community gardens partnership program. 
� Parking Reclamation Plan Create a parking reclamation plan that includes specific strategies 

to reclaim surplus parking spaces to expand structures and usable 
open spaces or create new ones.  Developers should anticipate 
changes in parking demand and design their site to create 
opportunities for adaptable reuse. 

� Parking Flex Plan Create a parking flex plan that shows how parking spaces can be 
temporarily used for something other than parking, such as 
festivals, outdoor dining, community gatherings, and other 
events.  The plan should identify the parking spaces and describe 
how they will be used. 

� Phased Parking Plan Create a phased parking plan and construct parking spaces in 
phases as demand requires.  Areas intended for future parking 
phases would remain as green space until converted to parking 
spaces.  If, after five years, future parking phases have not been 
constructed, they shall become permanent green space. 

� Green Infrastructure Provide and maintain green infrastructure such as bioretention 
areas (rain gardens), planter boxes, or vegetated buffer strips 
consistent with NCTCOG’s integrated Stormwater Management 
(iSWM) Program. 

� Solar Energy Use solar energy to satisfy 25% or more of on-site energy 
demand. 

� Preserve Open Space Reserve existing natural areas comprising at least 5% of the 
overall project size.  Such areas should incorporate quality non-
invasive tree stands, habitat or riparian areas.  Such areas should 
not include existing floodplain or other areas already protected or 
inherently unsuitable for development. 

x

x

Exhibit F - Appendix F Checklist
Page 3 of 4

78

Item4.



� 70% Native Plants Use native and drought tolerant species for at least 70% of 
planting materials. 

� Wi-Fi (.5) Provide Free Wi-Fi in common areas. 
� USB Charging Stations (.5) Provide USB charging stations in usable open spaces. 
� Smart Parking (.5) Provide web-connected sensors in pavement that help people 

find and/or reserve a parking space. 
� Ride-Sharing Drop-Off (.5) Provide designated spaces for ride-sharing pick-ups and drop-

offs. 
� Permeable Paving (.5) Use permeable pavement on 15% of the parking lot. 
� Green Roofs (.5) Provide a green roof that is at least 50% of total roof area. 
� Living Wall (.5) Provide a living wall that is at least 60% of the area of the facade 

on which it is constructed. 
� Recycling Program (.5) Institute a mandatory recycling program for occupants.  Provide 

recycling bins in addition to trash bins in common areas. 
� 30% Native Plants (.5) Use native and drought tolerant species for at least 30% of 

planting materials. 
� Pollinator Friendly Flowers (.5) Use native plants that attract bees, butterflies, moths, and 

hummingbirds for at least 20% of required landscape materials. 
Alternative Compliance 
The Menu Items listed do not represent an exhaustive list.  Developers may propose a comparable item not listed.  If developers are 
able to prove that the proposed item meets the intent of Appendix F, Staff may recommend that the proposed item be counted as a 
Menu Item.  Indicate the proposed item, identify which of the four elements the proposed item will count towards, and provide a 
brief description. 
�� If Selected Proposed Item/Element Description 

�   

�   

�   

�   

 

Menu Item Summary Table 
Element # of Menu Items 
Usable Open Space & Pedestrian Walkways  
Site Design & Building Orientation  
Building Design  
Healthy, Smart, Sustainable Community  
Alternative Compliance  
Total Menu Items:  
 

x

x

x

x

x

2

2

6

3

13

x

x

Alternative Standard

Alternative Standard

Foundation Planting

Bike Racks

1

7

2

.5

12.5

Exhibit F - Appendix F Checklist
Page 4 of 4

79

Item4.



¬«180¬«161

¬«342

¬«310

¬«10

¬«161¬«180

¬«352

¬«356

¬«183

¬«360

§̈¦67

§̈¦287

§̈¦175

§̈¦377

§̈¦77

§̈
¦

75

CASE LOCATION MAP
SUP-23-10-0045
FOUNDRY HOTELS

Location

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!

City Limits
Parcels

µ
Date: 1/8/2025

0 0.3
Miles

The City of Grand Prairie has prepared maps for departmental use. These are not official maps of the City of Grand Prairie and should not be used for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes but rather for reference. These 
maps are the property of the City of Grand Prairie and have been made available to public based on the Public Information Act. The City of Grand Prairie makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and 
accurate information possible. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use, or its interpretation. Utilization of this map indicates understanding and acceptance of this statement. 

Economy/ Independent
Midscale
Upper Midscale
Upscale

80

Item4.



SUPER 8 MOTEL

LA QUINTA INN

STUDIO 6

LIV SMART 
BY HILTON

¬«342

¬«310

¬«10

¬«161¬«180

¬«352

¬«356

¬«183

¬«360

§̈¦67

§̈¦287

§̈¦175

§̈¦377

§̈¦77

§̈
¦

75

CASE LOCATION MAP
SUP-23-10-0045
FOUNDRY HOTELS

Location

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!

City Limits
Parcels

µ
Date: 1/8/2025

0 0.06
Miles

The City of Grand Prairie has prepared maps for departmental use. These are not official maps of the City of Grand Prairie and should not be used for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes but rather for reference. These 
maps are the property of the City of Grand Prairie and have been made available to public based on the Public Information Act. The City of Grand Prairie makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and 
accurate information possible. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use, or its interpretation. Utilization of this map indicates understanding and acceptance of this statement. 

Economy/ Independent
Midscale
Upper Midscale
Upscale

81

Item4.



LIV SMART
BY HILTON

STUDIO 6

LA QUINTA INN

SUPER 8 MOTEL

¬«342

¬«310

¬«10

¬«161¬«180

¬«352

¬«356

¬«183

¬«360

§̈¦67

§̈¦287

§̈¦175

§̈¦377

§̈¦77

§̈
¦

75

CASE LOCATION MAP
SUP-23-10-0045
FOUNDRY HOTELS

Location

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!

City Limits
Parcels

µ
Date: 1/8/2025

0 0.06
Miles

The City of Grand Prairie has prepared maps for departmental use. These are not official maps of the City of Grand Prairie and should not be used for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes but rather for reference. These 
maps are the property of the City of Grand Prairie and have been made available to public based on the Public Information Act. The City of Grand Prairie makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and 
accurate information possible. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use, or its interpretation. Utilization of this map indicates understanding and acceptance of this statement. 

Hotels
Extended Stay

112

99

82

Item4.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 01/13/2025 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: June Sin, Senior Planner 

TITLE: SUP-24-09-0040 - Specific Use Permit Amendment - Inoperable 

Vehicle Holding Yard at 4226 E Main (City Council District 5). SUP 

Amendment (SUP-618) to amend the boundary of an existing 

Inoperable Vehicle Holding Yard and Flea Market on 27.30 acres. A 

portion of Lot 1, Block 1, Dallas Auto Auction Addition, City of Grand 

Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) and Heavy 

Industrial (HI), with an approximate address of 4226 E Main St 

APPLICANT: Glenn Woodard, Westwood  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve with conditions 

  

SUMMARY: 

SUP Amendment (SUP-618) to amend the boundary of an existing Inoperable Vehicle Holding Yard 

and Flea Market on 27.30 acres. A portion of Lot 1, Block 1, Dallas Auto Auction Addition, City of 

Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) and Heavy Industrial (HI), with an 

approximate address of 4226 E Main St. 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

The applicant seeks to adjust the boundary of SUP-618 for a vehicle holding yard. No other changes are 

being proposed. 

ADJACENT LAND USES: 

The following table summarizes the surrounding properties' zoning designation and existing use. 

Table 1. Zoning and Land Use 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North Light Industrial (LI) Warehouse 

South Heavy Industrial (HI)/PD-80 Automotive/Mobile Home Park  

West Light Industrial (LI) Automotive 

East HI/LI Undeveloped 

83

Item5.



Page 2 of 2 

HISTORY: 

 June 24, 1994: City Council approved SUP-618 (Ordinance No. 5511) for an inoperable vehicle 

holding yard and a flea market at the former Dallas Auto Action Auction (Case Number 

Z060603). 

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION: 

The proposed changes will reduce the area of a vehicle holding yard from 28.67 acres to 27.30 acres. On 

January 7, 2025, City Council approved a Specific Use Permit for a heavy truck parking facility to the 

east of the subject property (Case Number SUP-24-09-0039). 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) and staff recommend approval.  

84

Item5.



Planning and Development

¬«180E Main St

E Jefferson St

E Ih 30 Eb  

Ih 30 Svc EbE Ih 30 Wb

E Highway 180 Svc Rd

Grand Lakes Way

Ne 36th St
Ne 37th St

Service Road

Woodland Dr

E Jefferson St
E Highway 180 Svc Rd  

¬«342

¬«310

¬«10

¬«161¬«180

¬«352

¬«356

¬«183

¬«360

§̈¦67

§̈¦287

§̈¦175

§̈¦377

§̈¦77

§̈
¦

75

CASE LOCATION MAP
SUP-24-09-0040
4226 E MAIN

Location
Street Center Line
Parcels

µ
Date: 10/2/2024

0 0.2
Miles

Exhibit A- Location Map
Page 1 of 1

Planning and Development
City of Grand Prairie

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

The City of Grand Prairie has prepared maps for departmental use. These are not official maps of the City of Grand Prairie and should not be used for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes but rather for reference. These 
maps are the property of the City of Grand Prairie and have been made available to public based on the Public Information Act. The City of Grand Prairie makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and 
accurate information possible. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use, or its interpretation. Utilization of this map indicates understanding and acceptance of this statement. 

Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 1 of 2

85

Item5.



Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 2 of 2

86

Item5.



Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 1 of 1

87

Item5.



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 01/13/2025 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: Abdul R. Ghous, AICP, Senior Planner 

TITLE: SUP-24-04-0018 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - 2625 England 

Parkway (City Council District 6). SUP/Site Plan for a two-story multi-

tenant building with a drive thru on 1.00 acre. Lot 33, Block D, Mira 

Lagos East Retail Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, 

Texas, zoned PD-365, within the Lake Ridge Corridor Overlay District, 

and addressed as 2625 England Pkwy 

APPLICANT: Norman Patten 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve  

  

SUMMARY: 

SUP/Site Plan for a two-story multi-tenant building with a drive through on 1.00 acre. Lot 33, Block D, 

Mira Lagos East Retail Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-365, within the 

Lake Ridge Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 2625 England Pkwy. 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

The applicant intends to construct a two-story 12,363 sq. ft. retail/office building with an optional drive-

thru for a restaurant with associated parking spaces. The proposed retail space will be 5,826 sq. ft. and 

the office space consists of 6,354 sq. ft. Specific Use Permit approval by City Council is required for any 

project requesting a drive-thru within an overlay district. Site Plan approval is required for properties within 

an overlay district or a Planned Development District. 

ADJACENT LAND USES: 

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties. 

Table 1. Zoning and Land Use 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North PD-298A Undeveloped  

South PD-365 Residential Townhomes 

West PD-365 Residential Townhomes 

88

Item6.



Page 2 of 3 

East PD-298A Undeveloped 

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION: 

The proposal is a multi-tenant building with the option to have a drive-thru and 42 parking spaces. The 

site meets the requirements of the Unified Development Code (UDC) and Appendix F, Corridor Overlay 

District Standards.  

 

Parking Requirements 

The property is subject to parking requirements in Article 10 and Appendix F of the UDC. Appendix F 

states that the parking calculations in Article 10 of the Unified Development Code (UDC) shall serve as 

parking maximums. The following table summarizes these requirements. The proposal meets the parking 

requirements of the UDC.  
 

Table 2. Parking Summary 

Standard Required Proposed Meets 

Retail (1 space per 275 Sq. Ft.) (5,286 Sq. Ft.) 
22 

(Maximum) 
22 Yes 

Office (1 space per 325 Sq. Ft.) (6,354 Sq. Ft.) 
20 

(Maximum) 
20 Yes 

Drive Through Queue (One Lane) 
6 

(Minimum) 
6 Yes 

 

Landscape and Screening 

 

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Article 8 and Appendix F of the UDC. 

The following table summarizes these requirements. The proposal meets the landscape and screening 

requirements. 

 
Table 3. Landscape & Screening Requirements 

Standard Required Provided Meets 

Landscape Area (Sq. Ft.) 10% 4,356 10,738 Yes 

Front Yard 

75% of Required Landscape in Front Yard 
3,267 5,572 Yes 

Street & Buffer Trees (1/500 Sq. Ft.) 9 10 Yes 

Shrubs (1 5-gallon shrub per 50 Sq. Ft. of 

required landscape area) 
87 371 Yes 

Flowering and Colorful Plants (15%) 15 16.7 Yes 

 

Building Design 

 

The exterior building materials primarily consists of stone and stucco. The height of the proposed two-

story building is 23 feet. Appendix F requires that buildings include certain amount of windows and 

canopies, which are summarized in the table below. The proposal meets the building design requirements. 

 

Table 4. Windows and Canopies Requirements 

Standard Required Provided Meets 

Primary Facade  30% 37% Yes 

89

Item6.



Page 3 of 3 

Total Length 50% 56% Yes 

Total Canopy 25% 59% Yes 

 

 

Appendix F Checklist 

 

Appendix F requires that applicants provide Menu Items from four categories: Usable Open and 

Pedestrian Walkways, Site Design and Building Orientation, Building Design, and Healthy, Smart, and 

Sustainable Community. The table below lists the Menu Items included in the proposal. The proposal 

meets 13.5 of the required minimum of 12 Menu Items. 

 

Table 5. Appendix F Menu Items 

Category Amenity 

Site Design and Building Orientation Parking Lot Trees 

Site Design and Building Orientation Permeable Suface 

Building Design Material Mix 

Building Design Color Accent 

Building Design Stone Accent 

Building Design Roof Variation 

Building Design Articualte Public Entrance  

Building Design Canopy Variation 

Building Design Articulation Elements 

Building Design Design Elements 

Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community Mature Trees 

Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community 30% Native Plants (.5) 

Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community Wifi (.5) 

Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community Smart USB charging Stations (.5) 

Alternative Compliance Bicycle Rack 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE: 

Notice of this item was published in the Fort Worth Star Telegram and letters were provided to 36 

surrounding properties meeting the distance requirements in the Unified Development Code. As of the 

writing of this staff memo, the following letters have been received: 

In Support: None 

In Opposition: Three 

VARIANCES: 

The applicant is not requesting any variances. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval. 

90

Item6.



Planning and Development

Lake Ridge Pkwy

Vela

England Pkwy

S Grand Peninsula Dr

Explorador

Fuente  Napa Ln

Chablis Dr

Magellan Ln

Cal
isto

ga 
Ln

Frontera  

Ventura Ln
Rie

slin
g W

ay
Cima Way

Magel
lan

La Cala  Dr

Me
rlo

t P
l

Co
nch

a D
r

Del Sol Ct

Corona Dr

La Cumbre Way

Playa Norte Dr

St Helena Ln

Ba
lbo

a  

Shiraz Rd

Estado

Sonoma  Ln

Chianti Way

England Pkwy

¬«342

¬«310

¬«10

¬«161¬«180

¬«352

¬«356

¬«183

¬«360

§̈¦67

§̈¦287

§̈¦175

§̈¦377

§̈¦77

§̈¦75

CASE LOCATION MAP
SUP-24-04-0018
2625 ENGLAND PKWY

Location
Street Center Line
Parcels

µ
Date: 5/15/2024

0 0.07
Miles

Exhibit A- Location Map
Page 1 of 1Planning and Development

City of Grand Prairie
(972) 237-8255

www.gptx.org

The City of Grand Prairie has prepared maps for departmental use. These are not official maps of the City of Grand Prairie and should not be used for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes but rather for reference. These 
maps are the property of the City of Grand Prairie and have been made available to public based on the Public Information Act. The City of Grand Prairie makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and 
accurate information possible. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use, or its interpretation. Utilization of this map indicates understanding and acceptance of this statement. 

91

Item6.



92

Item6.



93

Item6.



94

Item6.



95

Item6.



Register Position

Submitted on 6 January 2025, 2:49PM

Receipt number 1040

Related form version 6

First Name Raffie

Last Name Bahi

Your Address Line 1 7392 Lake Ridge Parkway suite 300

Your Address Line 2

City Grand Prairie

State Texas

Zip Code 75054

Case Number sup-24-04-0018

I am registering my: Opposition

Additional Comments

1 of 1

Attachment i - Written Opposition
Page 1 of 3

96

Item6.



Register Position

Submitted on 6 January 2025, 2:50PM

Receipt number 1041

Related form version 6

First Name Mo

Last Name Iqbal

Your Address Line 1 7392 Lake Ridge Parkway suite 100

Your Address Line 2

City Grand Prairie

State Texas

Zip Code 75054

Case Number sup-2404-0018

I am registering my: Opposition

Additional Comments

1 of 1

Attachment i - Written Opposition
Page 2 of 3

97

Item6.



Register Position

Submitted on 6 January 2025, 2:51PM

Receipt number 1042

Related form version 6

First Name kamish

Last Name Bhai

Your Address Line 1 7402 Lake ridge pkwy apt 3322

Your Address Line 2

City Grand Prairie

State Texas

Zip Code 75054

Case Number sup-24-04-0018

I am registering my: Opposition

Additional Comments

1 of 1

Attachment i - Written Opposition
Page 3 of 3

98

Item6.



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 01/13/2025 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: Salvador Gonzalez Jr., Planner 

TITLE: ZON-24-11-0029 - Zoning Change – 2335 & 2339 SE 4th St. (City 

Council District 3). Zoning Change from Single Family-Two (SF-2) to 

Single Family-Six (SF-6) on 0.438 acres. Lots 1A &1B, Block H, 

Grand Prairie Prize Acres Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas 

County, Texas, zoned Single Family-Two (SF-2) District, and 

addressed as 2335 & 2339 SE 4th St. 

APPLICANT: Julian Leyva   

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

SUMMARY: 

Zoning Change from Single Family-Two (SF-2) to Single Family-Six (SF-6) on 0.438 acres. Lots 1A 

&1B, Block H, Grand Prairie Prize Acres Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned 

Single Family-Two (SF-2) District, and addressed as 2335 & 2339 SE 4th St. 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

The purpose of the request is to rezone the existing two lots to a zoning district which would allow for 

three residential lots. The applicant intends to build three individual single-family homes on the three 

proposed lots. If the zoning change is approved, the applicant will move forward with replatting the 

property.  

ADJACENT LAND USES: 

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties. 

Table 1. Zoning and Land Use 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North Single Family-Two Middle School  

South PD-93 Commercial/Retail 

West SF-2 Parking for Religious Institution 

East Neighborhood Services Single Family Residence  

99

Item7.



Page 2 of 3 

HISTORY: 

 March 1999: The City’s 1999 zoning map shows the subject property zoned Single Family-Two. 

CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 

Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map (FLUM) is designed to facilitate the efficient, sustainable, and fiscally sound 

development and redevelopment of Grand Prairie.  The purpose of the FLUM is to serve as an outlook 

for the future use of land and the character of development in the community.  The FLUM, along with 

other community objectives, is used to guide land use decisions. 

The 2021 Future Land Use Map, a component of the 2018 Comprehensive Plan, designates this location 

as Low Density Residential. The proposed zoning is consistent with the FLUM.  

ZONING REQUIREMENTS: 

The table below summarizes the requirements for SF-6. If zoning is approved, the applicant must 

comply with the following standards. 

Table 2. Summary of Lot Requirements 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 

The request is consistent with the adjacent land use and the FLUM.  

PUBLIC NOTICE: 

Notice of this item was published in the Fort Worth Star Telegram and letters were provided to 14 

surrounding properties meeting the distance requirements in the Unified Development Code. As of the 

writing of this staff memo, the following letters have been received: 

In Support: None 

In Opposition: None 

 

Standard SF-6 

Unit Density 8.7 units per acre  

Min. Living Area (Sq. Ft.) 1,400 

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 5,000 

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 50 

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 100 

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 

Internal Side Yard (Ft.) 5 

Rear Setback (Ft.) 10 

Max. Height (Ft.) 25 

Lot Coverage (%) 50 

100

Item7.



Page 3 of 3 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.  

101

Item7.



Planning and Development

Co
rn 

Va
lley

 Rd

Se 
4th

 St

Lakeview Dr

E Pioneer PkwyW Pioneer Pkwy

Sunridge Way

Twelve Oaks Blvd

¬«342

¬«310

¬«10

¬«161¬«180

¬«352

¬«356

¬«183

¬«360

§̈¦67

§̈¦287

§̈¦175

§̈¦377

§̈¦77

§̈
¦

75

CASE LOCATION MAP
ZON-24-11-0029
2335 & 2339 SE 4TH ST

Location
Street Center Line
Parcels

µ
Date: 11/11/2024

0 0.03
Miles

Exhibit A- Location Map
Page 1 of 1

Planning and Development
City of Grand Prairie

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

The City of Grand Prairie has prepared maps for departmental use. These are not official maps of the City of Grand Prairie and should not be used for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes but rather for reference. These 
maps are the property of the City of Grand Prairie and have been made available to public based on the Public Information Act. The City of Grand Prairie makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and 
accurate information possible. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use, or its interpretation. Utilization of this map indicates understanding and acceptance of this statement. 

102

Item7.



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 01/13/2025 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: Abdul R. Ghous, AICP, Senior Planner 

TITLE: ZON-24-09-0024 - Zoning Change - 509 Austin St (City Council 

District 5). Zone Change from Central Area District and Two Family 

Residential District to Single Family-Six Residential District on 0.17 

acres. A portion of Lot 3, Block B, Bairds Dallas Addition, City of 

Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Central Area District and 

Two Family Residential District, and addressed as 509 Austin St 

APPLICANT: Mike Arreguin, Applicant 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff is unable to recommend approval of this request since the single-

family use is inconsistent with the FLUM.  

Please note, the FLUM is not the property zoning, it is the 

recommended future land use for potential development per the City’s 

comprehensive plan. 

  

SUMMARY: 

Zoning Change from Central Area District and Two Family Residential District to Single Family-Six 

Residential District on 0.17 acres. A portion of Lot 3, Block B, Bairds Dallas Addition, City of Grand 

Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Central Area District and Two Family Residential District, and 

addressed as 509 Austin St. 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

The purpose of the request is to rezone the property to allow the construction of a single-family 

residence. The property is currently zoned Central Area District and Two Family Residential District, 

which does not allow single-family detached residential use. The Central Area and Two Family 

Residential Districts allow for higher density residential uses than single family detached. 

ADJACENT LAND USES: 

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties. 

Table 1. Zoning and Land Use 

103

Item8.



Page 2 of 3 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North Central Area Auto Related Business 

South Two Family Residential  Single Family Residential 

West Two Family Residential & Central Area Contractor’s Shop 

East Two Family Residential & Central Area Single Family Residential 

CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 

Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map (FLUM) is designed to facilitate the efficient, sustainable, and fiscally sound 

development and redevelopment of Grand Prairie.  The purpose of the FLUM is to serve as an outlook 

for the future use of land and the character of development in the community.  The FLUM, along with 

other community objectives, is used to guide land use decisions. 

The 2021 Future Land Use Map, a component of the 2018 Comprehensive Plan, designates this location 

as High Density Residential. The proposed zoning is inconsistent with the FLUM. Abutting properties are 

zoned Central Area or Two Family Residential. A request to amend the FLUM is under consideration (Case 

Number CPA-24-09-0013). 

ZONING REQUIREMENTS: 

The property was illegally subdivided decades ago. The table below summarizes the requirements for 

SF-6. If zoning is approved, the applicant must plat the property before the construction of a single-

family home. 

Table 2. Summary of Lot Requirements 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

ANALYSIS: 

The existing lot is currently vacant and the applicant desires to construct a single family residence on the 

lot. The northern and western boundaries of the property are bordered by an auto-related business and a 

contractor's shop, while the adjacent properties to the east and south are used for single-family 

residential purposes. The lot is located on a block that is predominantly residential, and it is unlikely that 

the area will develop into a high-density residential zone in the future. 

VARIANCES: 

The applicant is not requesting any variances at this time.  

Standard SF-6 

Unit Density 8.7 units per acre  

Min. Living Area (Sq. Ft.) 1,400 

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 5,000 

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 50 

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 100 

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 

Internal Side Yard (Ft.) 5 

Rear Setback (Ft.) 10 

Max. Height (Ft.) 25 

Lot Coverage (%) 50 

104

Item8.



Page 3 of 3 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff is unable to recommend approval of this request since the single-family use is inconsistent with the 

FLUM and surrounding land use.  

Please note, the FLUM is not the property zoning, it is the recommended future land use for potential 

development per the City’s comprehensive plan. 

Should the Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of the request, staff recommends the 

following condition: 

1. The applicant shall plat the property and file the final plat with the county before the issuance 

of any building permits. 

 

105

Item8.



Planning and Development

E Jefferson St

Se 
5th

 St

Austin St

E Grand Prairie Rd

Crockett St

E Pacific Av

Se Dallas St

Bradford St

Liv
ely

 Ln

Se 6th St

Se7 t hSt

Se 5th St

¬«342

¬«310

¬«10

¬«161¬«180

¬«352

¬«356

¬«183

¬«360

§̈¦67

§̈¦287

§̈¦175

§̈¦377

§̈¦77

§̈
¦

75

CASE LOCATION MAP
ZON-24-09-0024
509 AUSTIN ST

Location
Street Center Line
Parcels

µ
Date: 9/18/2024

0 0.03
Miles

Exhibit A- Location Map
Page 1 of 1

Planning and Development
City of Grand Prairie

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

The City of Grand Prairie has prepared maps for departmental use. These are not official maps of the City of Grand Prairie and should not be used for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes but rather for reference. These 
maps are the property of the City of Grand Prairie and have been made available to public based on the Public Information Act. The City of Grand Prairie makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and 
accurate information possible. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use, or its interpretation. Utilization of this map indicates understanding and acceptance of this statement. 

106

Item8.

aghous
Text Box
CASE LOCATION MAPCPA-24-09-0013 509 AUSTIN ST



107

Item8.



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 01/13/2025 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: Abdul R. Ghous, AICP, Senior Planner 

TITLE: ZON-24-09-0024 - Zoning Change - 509 Austin St (City Council 

District 5). Zone Change from Central Area District and Two Family 

Residential District to Single Family-Six Residential District on 0.17 

acres. A portion of Lot 3, Block B, Bairds Dallas Addition, City of 

Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Central Area District and 

Two Family Residential District, and addressed as 509 Austin St 

APPLICANT: Mike Arreguin, Applicant 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff is unable to recommend approval of this request since the single-

family use is inconsistent with the FLUM.  

Please note, the FLUM is not the property zoning, it is the 

recommended future land use for potential development per the City’s 

comprehensive plan. 

  

SUMMARY: 

Zoning Change from Central Area District and Two Family Residential District to Single Family-Six 

Residential District on 0.17 acres. A portion of Lot 3, Block B, Bairds Dallas Addition, City of Grand 

Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Central Area District and Two Family Residential District, and 

addressed as 509 Austin St. 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

The purpose of the request is to rezone the property to allow the construction of a single-family 

residence. The property is currently zoned Central Area District and Two Family Residential District, 

which does not allow single-family residential use. 

ADJACENT LAND USES: 

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties. 

Table 1. Zoning and Land Use 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

108

Item9.



Page 2 of 3 

North Central Area Auto Related Business 

South Two Family Residential  Single Family Residential 

West Two Family Residential & Central Area Contractor’s Shop 

East Two Family Residential & Central Area Single Family Residential 

CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 

Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map (FLUM) is designed to facilitate the efficient, sustainable, and fiscally sound 

development and redevelopment of Grand Prairie.  The purpose of the FLUM is to serve as an outlook 

for the future use of land and the character of development in the community.  The FLUM, along with 

other community objectives, is used to guide land use decisions. 

The 2021 Future Land Use Map, a component of the 2018 Comprehensive Plan, designates this location 

as High Density Residential. The proposed zoning is inconsistent with the FLUM. Abutting properties are 

zoned Central Area or Two Family Residential. A request to amend the FLUM is under consideration (Case 

Number CPA-24-09-0013). 

ZONING REQUIREMENTS: 

The property was illegally subdivided decades ago. The table below summarizes the requirements for 

SF-6. If zoning is approved, the applicant must plat the property before the construction of a single-

family home. 

Table 2. Summary of Lot Requirements 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

ANALYSIS: 

The existing lot is currently vacant and the applicant desires to construct a single family residence on the 

lot. The northern and western boundaries of the property are bordered by an auto-related business and a 

contractor's shop, while the adjacent properties to the east and south are used for single-family 

residential purposes. The lot is located on a block that is predominantly residential, and it is unlikely that 

the area will develop into a high-density residential zone in the future. 

VARIANCES: 

The applicant is not requesting any variances at this time.  

Standard SF-6 

Unit Density 8.7 units per acre  

Min. Living Area (Sq. Ft.) 1,400 

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 5,000 

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 50 

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 100 

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 

Internal Side Yard (Ft.) 5 

Rear Setback (Ft.) 10 

Max. Height (Ft.) 25 

Lot Coverage (%) 50 

109

Item9.



Page 3 of 3 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff is unable to recommend approval of this request since the single-family use is inconsistent with the 

FLUM and surrounding land use.  

Please note, the FLUM is not the property zoning, it is the recommended future land use for potential 

development per the City’s comprehensive plan. 

Should the Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of the request, staff recommends the 

following condition: 

1. The applicant shall plat the property and file the final plat with the county before the issuance 

of any building permits. 

 

110

Item9.



Planning and Development

E Jefferson St

Se 
5th

 St

Austin St

E Grand Prairie Rd

Crockett St

E Pacific Av

Se Dallas St

Bradford St

Liv
ely

 Ln

Se 6th St

Se7 t hSt

Se 5th St

¬«342

¬«310

¬«10

¬«161¬«180

¬«352

¬«356

¬«183

¬«360

§̈¦67

§̈¦287

§̈¦175

§̈¦377

§̈¦77

§̈
¦

75

CASE LOCATION MAP
ZON-24-09-0024
509 AUSTIN ST

Location
Street Center Line
Parcels

µ
Date: 9/18/2024

0 0.03
Miles

Exhibit A- Location Map
Page 1 of 1

Planning and Development
City of Grand Prairie

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

The City of Grand Prairie has prepared maps for departmental use. These are not official maps of the City of Grand Prairie and should not be used for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes but rather for reference. These 
maps are the property of the City of Grand Prairie and have been made available to public based on the Public Information Act. The City of Grand Prairie makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and 
accurate information possible. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use, or its interpretation. Utilization of this map indicates understanding and acceptance of this statement. 

111

Item9.



112

Item9.


	Top
	Item1.	Approval of Minutes of the December 9, 2024, P&Z meeting
	Approval of Minutes of the December 9, 2024 meeting
	Minutes 12-09-24 (AutoRecovered)

	Item2.	PZ: 2025-01-13 PLT-24-11-0043 Lakesong Phase 2
	2025-01-13 PZ PLT-24-11-0043 Lakesong Phase 2_FINAL
	Exhibit A - Location Map
	Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat

	Item3.	PZ: 2025-01-13 STP-24-11-0045 Oncor Trye Substation
	2025-01-13 PZ STP-24-11-0045 Oncor Substation at 2350 W Marshall_FINAL
	Exhibit A - Boundary Description
	Exhibit B - Site Plan

	Item4.	PZ: 2025-01-13 STP-24-11-0043 LivSmart by Hilton
	2025-01-13 PZ STP-24-11-0043 LivSmart at 340 E Palace_FINAL
	Exhibit A - Boundary Description
	Exhibit B - Site Plan
	Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
	Exhibit D - Building Elevations
	Exhibit E - Amenity Plans
	Exhibit F - Appendix F Checklists
	Attachment i - Hotel Classification within 1 Mile

	Item5.	PZ: 2025-01-13 SUP-24-09-0040 Inoperable Vehicle Holding Yard at 4226 E Main
	2025-01-13 PZ SUP-24-09-0040 SUP-618 Amendment_FINAL
	Exhibit A - Boundary Description
	Exhibit B - Site Plan

	Item6.	PZ: 2025-01-13 SUP-24-04-0018 2625 England Parkway
	2025-01-13 SUP-24-04-0018 - 2625 England Pkwy_FINAL
	Exhibit A - Location Map
	Exhibit B - Site Plan
	Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
	Exhibit D - Building Elevations
	Attachment i - Written Opposition

	Item7.	PZ: 2025-01-13 ZON-24-11-0029 2335 & 2339 SE 4th
	2024-01-13 PZ ZON-24-11-0029 2335 SE 4th St_FINAL
	Exhibit A - Location Map

	Item8.	PZ: 2025-01-13 CPA-24-09-0013 509 Austin St
	2025-1-13 PZ CPA-24-09-0013 509 Austin St_FINAL
	Exhibit A - Location Map
	Exhibit B - Survey

	Item9.	PZ: 2025-01-13 ZON-24-09-0024 509 Austin St
	2025-01-13 PZ ZON-24-09-0024 509 Austin St_FINAL
	Exhibit A - Location Map
	Exhibit B - Survey

	Bottom

